
COUNTY OF SULLIVAN INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
548 Broadway 

Monticello, New York 12701 
(845) 428-7575 - Voice 
(845) 428-7577 - Fax 
www.sullivanida.com 

TTY 711 
 

NOTICE OF CHANGE IN MEETING LOCATION 
 
TO:  Ira Steingart, IDA Chairman 
  Suzanne Loughlin, IDA Vice Chair 
  Howard Siegel, IDA Treasurer & Chief Financial Officer 

Edward Sykes, IDA Assistant Secretary & Chief Executive Officer 
Scott Smith, IDA Assistant Treasurer 

  Paul Guenther, IDA Member 
  Joseph Perrello, IDA Member 

Carol Roig, IDA Member 
  Chairman and Members of the Sullivan County Legislature 
  Josh Potosek, Sullivan County Manager 
  Walter Garigliano, Esq., IDA Counsel 
FROM:  Jennifer Flad, Executive Director 
DATE:  July 8, 2020 
 
 
PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that in accordance with Governor Cuomo’s Executive Order No. 202.48 issued 
on July 6, 2020, extending Executive order 220.1 which suspends the Open Meetings Law due to the 
Novel Coronavirus (COVID-19) Emergency, the Regular Meeting of the County of Sullivan Industrial 
Development Agency originally scheduled for Monday, July 13, 2020 at 11:00 AM in the Legislative 
Hearing Room at the Sullivan County Government Center, 100 North Street, Monticello, New York 
will be held via conference call.  
 
Members of the public may attend the meeting by dialing 929-205-6099 and entering Meeting ID 
965 3793 6483. 
 
  
 
  
 
 

SEE REVERSE FOR AGENDA 
 
 
 
 

 

http://www.sullivanida.com/


 
COUNTY OF SULLIVAN INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

548 Broadway 
Monticello, New York 12701 

(845) 428-7575 - Voice 
(845) 428-7577 - Fax 
www.sullivanida.com 

TTY 711 
 

MEETING AGENDA 
Monday, July 13, 2020 

To be held via conference call: Dial 929-205-6099 and enter Meeting ID 965 3793 6483 
 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER 
II. ROLL CALL 
III. APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES 

June 8, 2020 Regular Meeting 
IV. BILLS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
V. STAFF REPORT 
VI. NEW BUSINESS 

Resolution: Extending the Sales Tax Abatement Period for the Catskill Hospitality Holding LLC 
and Catskill Hospitality Operating LLC Project From August 1, 2020 Through and Including 
January 31, 2021 
Resolution: Authorizing the Grant of an Easement to New York State Electric & Gas Corp. 
(NYSEG) to Provide Electrical Service at the BRR Brothers III, LLC and Sullivan County 
Fabrication, Inc. Project 
Resolution: Appointing RGG Realty LLC and Columbia Ice and Cold Storage Corporation as 
Agents of the Agency; Making Certain Findings and Determinations; and Authorizing the 
Execution and Delivery of an Agent and Project Agreement, Lease to Agency, Leaseback to 
Company, PILOT Agreement, and Related Documents 
Any and All Other Business Before the Board  

VII. ADJOURN  
## 

http://www.sullivanida.com/


 
COUNTY OF SULLIVAN INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

548 Broadway 
Monticello, New York 12701 

Tel: (845) 428-7575 
Fax: (845) 428-7577 

TTY 711 
www.sullivanida.com  

 
 MEETING MINUTES 

Monday, June 8, 2020 
 

I.     CALL TO ORDER 
Chairman Steingart called to order the regular meeting of the County of Sullivan Industrial 
Development Agency at approximately 11:02 AM via teleconference.  
 

II.      ROLL CALL 
Members Present-                       Members Absent- 
Ira Steingart      
Suzanne Loughlin 
Howard Siegel     
Edward Sykes  
Scott Smith 
Paul Guenther   
Joseph Perrello         
Carol Roig 
                      
Staff Present-                               Staff Absent- 
Jennifer Flad, Executive Director   
Julio Garaicoechea, Project Manager 
Deborah Nola, Accounting and Financial Analyst 
 
Others Present- 
Walter Garigliano, Agency Counsel 
Patricio Robayo, Sullivan County Democrat 
Richard Klein, Sullivan Catskills Times 
Ken Walter 

 
III. APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES 

On motion by Mr. Guenther and seconded by Mr. Sykes, the Board voted and the minutes of the May 
11, 2020 Meeting were unanimously approved.  

 
IV.  BILLS AND COMMUNICATIONS 

On a motion by Ms. Loughlin and seconded by Mr. Perrello the schedule of payments was 
unanimously approved.  

 
V.  STAFF REPORT 

There were no questions on the staff report. Ms. Flad included a Memorandum regarding proposed 
New York State legislation approved by the State Legislature and pending signature by Governor 
Cuomo. The legislation will allow IDAs to make loans and grants available to businesses to help them 
remain viable during the COVID-19 pandemic. Also, Ms. Flad reminded the Board to discuss and 
accept the Board Self-Evaluation. The Board accepted the Board Self-Evaluation. 

http://www.sullivanida.com/


 
 
VI.  NEW BUSINESS 
 

On a motion made by Mr. Perrello and seconded by Mr. Guenther, the Board voted and unanimously 
adopted a resolution to provide funding to the Partnership for Economic Development for the second 
quarter of 2020.   
 
Attorney Garigliano suggested the Board move the proposed resolutions extending the sales tax 
abatement periods for the Doetsch Family I LLC & Doetsch Family II LLC, Rock Meadow Partners, 
Forestburgh Hospitality, and Montreign Operating Company projects as a block.  Ms. Loughlin made 
a motion to discuss these four resolutions, and Mr. Sykes seconded the motion.  There being no 
discussion, the Board voted and unanimously adopted the following resolutions:  
 
Resolution extending the sales tax abatement period for the Doetsch Family I LLC & Doetsch Family 
II LLC project from July 1, 2020 through and including December 31, 2020. 
 
Resolution extending the sales tax abatement period for the Rock Meadow Partners project from July 
1, 2020 through and including December 31, 2020. 
 
Resolution extending the sales tax abatement period for the Forestburgh Hospitality project from 
July 1, 2020 through and including December 31, 2020. 
 
Resolution extending the sales tax abatement period for the Montreign Operating Company project 
from July 1, 2020 through and including December 31, 2020. 
 
On a motion made by Mr. Siegel and seconded by Mr. Guenther, the Board discussed a resolution to 
extend the sales tax abatement period for the Veria Lifestyle, Inc. infrastructure project from July 1, 
2020 through and including December 31, 2020. Mr. Garaicoechea stated the project owes reports 
and fees for April. Attorney Garigliano suggested that the Board restrict the abatement to apply only 
to work on the sewer treatment system. Mr. Siegel made a motion to amend the resolution for the 
abatement to apply only to work on the sewer treatment system. Ms. Loughlin seconded the motion, 
the Board voted and the resolution was amended.  The Board then voted and unanimously adopted 
the resolution as amended.   

 
On a motion made by Mr. Guenther and seconded by Mr. Steingart, the Board discussed a 
resolution authorizing the execution and delivery of a First Amendment to Payment in Lieu of Tax 
Agreement relating to the RJ Baker Corp. and Beaverkill Studio, Inc. project. Mr. Sykes recused 
himself from the discussion because he is a Director of the First National Bank of Jeffersonville, 
which is a creditor to the project. Chairman Steingart called the motion to question and the 
resolution was adopted with the Board voting as follows:  
 

 
 

 
 

Ira Steingart 
Suzanne Loughlin 

[ √ ] Yes 
[ √ ] Yes 

[ 
[ 

] No 
] No 

[    ] Absent 
[    ] Absent 

[    ] Abstain 
  [    ] Abstain 

Edward T. Sykes [    ] Yes [ ] No [    ] Absent [ √ ] Abstain 
Howard Siegel [ √ ] Yes [ ] No [    ] Absent [    ] Abstain 
Scott Smith [ √ ] Yes [ ] No  [    ] Absent [    ] Abstain 
Paul Guenther [ √ ] Yes [ ] No [    ] Absent [    ] Abstain 
Joseph Perrello [ √ ] Yes [ ] No [    ] Absent [    ] Abstain 
Carol Roig [ √ ] Yes [ ] No [    ] Absent [    ] Abstain 



 
On a motion made by Mr. Guenther and seconded by Ms. Loughlin, the Board voted and unanimously 
approved FY 2019 Reports to the New York State Authorities Budget Office.  
 

VII.  PUBLIC COMMENT 
The Board briefly discussed the upcoming review of the Agency’s Uniform Tax Exempt Policy.   The 
Board then recognized the comments of Ken Walter. 

 
VIII.  ADJOURN 

On a motion made by Mr. Guenther and seconded by Ms. Loughlin, the Board voted and the meeting 
was adjourned at approximately 11:22AM.  
 
Respectfully submitted: 
Julio Garaicoechea, Project Manager 
## 

 



Vendor Description Amount
Cardmember Service Personal Protective Equipment for Staff; Adobe Acrobat Subscription; 

Zoom Subscription; Stamps.com Service and Postage; IDA Academy 
Registration (Flad, Nola)

506.76$                  

Garigliano Law Offices Retainer July 2020 250.00$                  
Garigliano Law Offices Sales Tax Extension Legal Fee: Catskill Hospitality 250.00$                  
Kristt Company Office Supplies 401.41$                  
Merrill Lynch FBO Deborah Nola Retirement Contribution- D. Nola 1,592.00$               
New Southern Tier Title Agency LLC August 2020 Office Rent 2,700.00$               
RBT CPAs LLP FY 2019 Audit: Update of Supplemental Schedule and Workpapers 537.50$                  
Sullivan County Democrat Subscription Renewal (2 years) 122.00$                  
Sullivan County Democrat RGG Realty/ Columbia Ice Notice of Public Hearing (pass-through) 72.11$                    
Time Warner Cable Phone and Internet Service 7/1/20 - 7/31/20 219.95$                  
USDA Rural Development RMAP Loan Repayment - July 2020 2,370.41$               
Wells Fargo Funds Retirement Contribution- J. Flad 2,750.00$               
Wilson Elser Moskowitz Edelman & 
Dicker LLP

Legal Services Through 5/21/20 re: Catskill Distilling Co. Ltd. Chapter 11
1,960.00$               

TOTAL 13,732.14$             

_________________________________ 7/13/2020
Signature

Date

Vendor Description Amount

Crown Equipment  Corp. Seminary Hill RBDG Forklift Purchase- 70% Balance (Approved by Board 
Resolution #07-18, 3/12/18) (pass-through) 11,620.00$             

TOTAL 11,620.00$             

Vendor Description Amount
Payroll Expenses Payroll Check Dates:  6/19/20, 7/3/20 18,091.21$             

FP Mailing Solutions Postage for Postage Meter 300.00$                  
TOTAL 18,391.21$             

Payee Description Amount
County of Sullivan RHH Land LLC, Catskill Distilling Co. Ltd. 2020 PILOT 17,521.90$             
Town of Bethel Catskill Distilling Co. Ltd. 2020 PILOT 3,528.72$               
Town of Thompson RHH Land LLC 2020 PILOT 5,689.50$               

Monticello Central School RHH Land LLC, Catskill Distilling Co. Ltd. 2020 PILOT 37,591.36$             
TOTAL 64,331.48$             

PILOT Payments Distributed Since Last Regular Meeting (6/8/20)

Other Expenses and Items Paid Since Last Regular Meeting (6/8/20)—no approval required

COUNTY OF SULLIVAN INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
548 Broadway, Monticello, NY 12701

845-428-7575
REVISED SCHEDULE OF PAYMENTS AS OF JULY 10, 2020

I certify that the payments listed above were audited by the Board of the IDA on July 13, 2020 and allowed in the amounts shown.  You are 
hereby authorized and directed to pay each of the claimants in the amount opposite its name.

Expenses Approved and Paid Since Last Regular Meeting (6/8/20)



ACTIVITY REPORT – JUNE 2020 
COUNTY OF SULLIVAN INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY, SULLIVAN COUNTY 

FUNDING CORPORATION, THE SULLIVAN COUNTY INFRASTRUCTURE LOCAL 
DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 

 
July 7, 2020 
 
At its regular Board meeting on June 8, conducted via teleconference, the County of Sullivan 
Industrial Development Agency (IDA) approved extensions of the sales tax exemption 
periods for several ongoing projects, in accordance with the project agreements: 

• Doetsch Family I LLC & Doetsch Family II LLC: Cidery in the Town of Delaware 
• Rock Meadow Partners LLC, Great Pine LLC, Indian Fields LLC, and NARO Building 

LLC: Redevelopment of Narrowsburg School in the Town of Tusten 
• Forestburgh Hospitality LLC and Forestburgh Property LLC: Luxury camping facility 

in the Town of Forestburgh 
• Montreign Operating Company, LLC: Casino resort in the Town of Thompson 
• Veria Lifestyle, Inc.: Infrastructure for the Yo1 Resort in the Town of Thompson 

 
The Board also approved a quarterly payment for services to the Partnership for Economic 
Development in Sullivan County, Inc.   
 
Also at its June meeting, the IDA Board approved the Fiscal Year 2019 reports to the New 
York State Authorities Budget Office, and staff submitted the reports via the Public 
Authorities Reporting Information System (PARIS). 
 
During June staff completed the scope of work of the Fiscal Year 2018 Rural Business 
Development Grant (RBDG) to facilitate the development of Seminary Hill Ciders in the 
Town of Delaware.  All RBDG-funded equipment has been procured and the IDA will enter 
into an equipment lease agreement with Seminary Hill Ciders. As with all RBDG-funded 
equipment leases, these lease payments will be deposited into the IDA’s Agri-Business 
Revolving Loan and Lease Fund, to assist other agriculture-related businesses in Sullivan 
County. 
 
On June 24 and 25, IDA staff and Board members attended the New York State Economic 
Development Council’s Virtual IDA Academy, which included sessions on new prevailing 
wage law and other IDA-related legislation; Office of the State Comptroller oversight of IDAs; 
Board and staff training and best practices; and more. 
 
The IDA Board will resume in-person meetings beginning with its regular monthly meeting 
on July 13th, which will be held in the Legislative Hearing Room at the Sullivan County 
Government Center. 
 
The NYS Authorities Budget Office continues its review of economic development in Sullivan 
County, and staff is making every effort to provide documents and information as requested.  
 

## 



ASSETS 12/31/2019 6/30/2020
Current Assets

Cash & Cash Equivalents 4,529,410.94$               5,389,763.51$                           
Restricted Cash 1,588,490.95$               1,046,741.93$                           
Accounts Receivable 37,019.00$                    302,859.28$                              
Prepaid Expense 2,700.44$                       2,700.44$                                   
Notes Receivable- Current 72,344.00$                    70,226.00$                                 
Due from Fed Agency 314,401.00$                  314,401.00$                              
Due from Related Party 12,000.00$                    12,000.00$                                 

Total Current Assets 6,556,366.33$               7,138,692.16$                           

Non Current Assets
Notes Receivable 141,578.00$                  105,045.00$                              
Capital Assets 3,277,518.67$               3,390,288.67$                           

Total Non Current Assets 3,419,096.67$               3,495,333.67$                           

TOTAL ASSETS 9,975,463.00$               10,634,025.83$                         

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable 20,213.00$                    21,165.23$                                 
Accured Payroll 8,862.91$                       8,862.91$                                   
Unearned Revenue 17,300.00$                    17,300.00$                                 
Proj Escrow Liability 93,077.77$                    88,080.43$                                 
PILOT Escrow Liability 433,223.95$                  172,142.53$                              
Sales Tax Escrow Liability 451,335.03$                  269,958.58$                              
Current Portion of Note Payable 22,440.27$                    22,662.00$                                 

Total Current Liabilities 1,046,452.93$               600,171.68$                              

Non Current Liabilities
Note Payable 288,029.00$                  277,561.00$                              

TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,334,481.93$               877,732.68$                              

TOTAL NET POSITION 8,640,981.07$               9,756,293.15$                           

County of Sullivan IDA Balance Sheet



 9:24 AM
 07/01/20
 Cash Basis CSIDA Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual

Jan - Mar 20 Apr - Jun 20 Jan - Jun 20 Annual Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

4000 · Project Fees (one time) 35,710.08 41,771.30 77,481.38 77,625.00

4002 · Agency Annual Fees 504,517.00 952.55 505,469.55 524,267.00

4002.1 · Anticipated Agency Fees 0.00 0.00 0.00 5,000.00

4003 · Application Fees 250.00 250.00 500.00 2,000.00

4004 · Interest Income-Bank & CD 3,377.90 3,129.82 6,507.72 9,500.00

4005 · Interest Income- Loans

Appel 4 497.25 471.38 968.63

BHFM, Inc. 352.33 328.15 680.48

Jane Axamethy 21.31 0.00 21.31

Jeff Sanitation, Inc. 155.45 210.66 366.11

Justin Sutherland 218.66 0.00 218.66

Salt & Pepper 210.82 174.48 385.30

4005 · Interest Income- Loans 1,455.82 1,184.67 2,640.49 8,500.00

4006 · Late Fee & Misc. Income 95.25 18.06 113.31 500.00

4013 · Farm Assistance RLF

4013.1a Catskill Distilling Lease 1 0.00 0.00 0.00

4013.1b Catskill Distilling Lease 2 0.00 0.00 0.00

4013.10 · Catskill Brewery Van 3 1,328.07 885.38 2,213.45

4013.11 · Catskill Brewery Brewhouse 6,266.84 3,133.42 9,400.26

Catskill Brewery Canning Line 0.00 0.00 0.00

4013.2 · Prohibition Distillery Lease 2,037.15 2,037.15 4,074.30

4013.3a · Roscoe Beer Co. Lease 1 2,028.93 2,028.93 4,057.86

4013.3b · Roscoe Beer Co. Lease 2 1,354.47 1,354.47 2,708.94

4013.4b · Sull County Farms 1,161.21 774.14 1,935.35

4013.5 · Locust Grove Farm Lease 853.88 2,280.82 3,134.70

4013.6 · Catskill Brewery Equip Lease 1,871.67 1,247.78 3,119.45

4013.7 · SCRFH, Inc.

SCRFH 1 C/F Boxes 925.68 231.42 1,157.10

SCRFH 2 C/F Machinery 1,248.52 312.13 1,560.65

SCRFH 3 Misc Equipment 1,590.16 397.54 1,987.70

SCRFH 4 Van 1,854.92 463.73 2,318.65

SCRFH 5 Van 2 1,919.24 479.81 2,399.05

SCRFH 7 Generator 486.96 121.74 608.70

4013.8 · Sull Cty Farms- Smoker 1,352.67 901.78 2,254.45

4013.9 · Seminary Hill 1,378.86 2,757.72 4,136.58

Total 4013 · Farm Assistance RLF 27,659.23 19,407.96 47,067.19 123,774.06

SCRFH Building Lease 0.00 0.00 0.00

4022 · SCFC Mngt & Admin Svc Agree 0.00 0.00 0.00 40,000.00

4023 · SC Infra LDC Mngmt/Admin Svc Ag 0.00 12,000.00 12,000.00 12,000.00

4900 · Federal Aid 0.00 447,401.00 447,401.00

4902 · Rebate Service Charge Fee 0.00 5.00 5.00

Total Income 573,065.28 526,120.36 1,099,185.64 803,166.06

Gross Profit 573,065.28 526,120.36 1,099,185.64 803,166.06



 9:24 AM
 07/01/20
 Cash Basis CSIDA Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual

Jan - Mar 20 Apr - Jun 20 Jan - Jun 20 Annual Budget

6000 · Personnel **

Gross Wages 47,979.12 47,965.43 104,321.48 215,440.00

Ins - Disability 75.96 -27.60 43.56 350.00

Ins - Health 0.00 9,020.76 9,020.76 20,000.00

Ins - Pd Fam Lv 352.68 -128.15 202.14 0.00

Other Fringe Ben 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,000.00

PR Processing 548.70 244.55 834.18 1,020.00

Soc Sec & Med 3,670.46 3,669.37 7,980.68 19,470.00

Unemp - Federal 126.00 41.31 167.98 260.00

Unemp - State 208.78 41.35 259.32 600.00

Workers Comp 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,800.00

Total 6000 · Personnel ** 52,961.70 60,827.02 122,830.10 261,940.00

6001 · Promotion (SC Partnership) 18,750.00 18,750.00 37,500.00 75,000.00

6002 · Subscriptions 318.57 2,793.85 3,112.42 2,000.00

6003 · Office Supplies 1,346.08 571.57 1,917.65 15,000.00

6003.1 · Non Reimbursable Legal Fees 8,894.51 5,871.60 14,766.11 60,000.00

6003.2 · Non Reimbursable Accounting 7,500.00 1,700.00 9,200.00 9,200.00

6003.3 · Non Reimbursable Consulting 190.00 95.00 285.00 10,000.00

6007 · Rent Expense 8,100.00 8,100.00 16,200.00 32,400.00

6008 · Telephone/Fax/Computer 659.85 975.47 1,635.32 2,700.00

6009 · Insurance 7,573.15 0.00 7,573.15 12,500.00

6010 · Postage 486.85 389.35 876.20 1,800.00

6011 · Repairs and Maintenance 0.00 0.00 0.00 250.00

6012.3 · Conferences & Seminars 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,000.00

6012.4 · Storage 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,980.00

6012.5 · Credit Reports 0.00 0.00 0.00 250.00

6012.6 · Dues 6,650.00 0.00 6,650.00 6,250.00

6016 · Misc. Office Expenses -0.03 -0.02 -0.05 0.00

6017 · Advertising 92.78 59.55 152.33 500.00

6018 · Equipment Purchase 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00

6019 · Ret'd Ck/Svc Chrg 60.00 0.00 60.00

6035 · Travel Expenses 748.00 0.00 748.00 2,500.00

6040 · Expense Reserve 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,000.00

Total Expense 114,331.46 100,133.39 223,506.23 500,270.00

Net Ordinary Income 458,733.82 425,986.97 875,679.41 302,896.06

Other Income/Expense

Other Expense

6030 · Escrow Acc'ts Bank Svc Chg 0.00 5.00 5.00

8001 · Interest Expense 1,996.25 1,980.25 3,976.50

Total Other Expense 1,996.25 1,985.25 3,981.50

Net Other Income -1,996.25 -1,985.25 -3,981.50
Net Income 456,737.57 424,001.72 871,697.91 302,896.06

Expense



7/2/2020 

Board of Directors 

Catskill Hospitality LLC 
DBA- Hampton Inn 

16, RACEWAY ROAD, 
MONTICELLO, NY 12701 

County of Sullivan Industrial Development Agency 
548 Broadway 
Monticello, NY 12701 

RE: New York State Sales and Use Tax Exemption 
Request for 6 Month Extension 
Catskill Hospitality 

Ladies and Gentlemen of the Board of Directors, 

Please allow this letter to serve as a formal request for a 6 month extension of our Sales 
and Use Tax Abatement Letter currently expiring July 31, 2020. 

We anticipate the project to be completed by the end of the next extension (January 31, 
2021 ). Construction activities to occur during this period include, but are not limited to: 

Roofing 
Windows 
Electric, HVAC and Plumbing Installations 
EIFS 
Interior Finishes 
Fire Suppression System & Alarm 
Final Site Work 

Should you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact us. 

Thaekyo"/ 

!/Jlflt-
Catskill Hospitality Inc 



 

 

RESOLUTION 
 

A regular meeting of the County of Sullivan Industrial Development Agency (“Agency”) was 
convened via teleconference on July 13, 2020, at 11:00 a.m. 

 
 The meeting was called to order by Chairman Ira Steingart, and, upon roll being called, the 
following members of the Agency were: 
 
     PRESENT  ABSENT 
  
 Ira Steingart   [     ]  [     ] 
 Suzanne Loughlin  [     ]   [     ] 
 Edward T. Sykes  [     ]  [     ] 
 Howard Siegel   [     ]  [     ] 
 Scott Smith   [     ]  [     ] 
 Paul Guenther                         [     ]  [     ] 
 Joseph Perrello  [     ]  [     ] 
 Carol Roig   [     ]  [     ] 
  
 The following persons were also present: 
 
 Jennifer M. Flad, Executive Director 
 Julio Garaicoechea, Project Manager 

Deborah Nola, Accounting and Financial Analyst 
 Walter F. Garigliano, Agency General Counsel 
        
 The following resolution was duly offered by _____________________________, and 
seconded by __________________________, to wit: 
 
 Resolution No. ___ - 20 
      

RESOLUTION EXTENDING THE SALES TAX ABATEMENT PERIOD FOR 
THE CATSKILL HOSPITALITY HOLDING LLC (“CATSKILL HOLDING”) 
AND CATSKILL HOSPITALITY OPERATING LLC (“CATSKILL OPERATING” 
TOGETHER WITH CATSKILL HOLDING COLLECTIVELY, THE 
“COMPANY”) PROJECT FROM AUGUST 1, 2020 THROUGH AND 
INCLUDING JANUARY 31, 2021 

 
 WHEREAS, by Title 1 of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law of the State of New 
York ("State"), as amended, and Chapter 560 of the Laws of 1970 of the State, as amended and 
codified as Section 960 of the General Municipal Law (collectively, the “Act”), the Agency was 
created with the authority and power to own, lease and sell property as authorized by the Act; and 
 

WHEREAS, on April 5, 2016, the Company and Catskill Hospitality Operating LLC 
presented an application to the Agency, a copy of which is on file with the Agency, requesting the 
Agency’s assistance with respect to a certain project consisting of the: (i) acquisition, construction, 
installation and equipping of an approximately 56,000 square foot building  intended to be used as a 
limited service hotel (“Building”) situate on one (1) parcel of real estate consisting of approximately 



 

 

6.59± acres located along Golden Ridge Road, Town of Thompson (“Town”), County of Sullivan, 
State of New York and identified on the Town tax map as a portion of Section 13, Block 3, Lot 38.1 
(“Land”); (ii) acquisition, construction and equipping of the Building; (iii) acquisition, construction 
and installation thereon and therein of certain furniture, fixtures, machinery, equipment and tools 
(“Equipment”); (iv) construction of improvements to the Building, the Land and the Equipment 
(collectively, the Building, the Land and the Equipment are referred to as the “Facility” or the 
“Project”); and (v) lease of the Project from the Agency to the Company; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on or about August 1, 2018, the Agency and the Company entered into an 
Amended and Restated Agent and Project Agreement pursuant to which the Agency designated the 
Company as agent of the Agency; and  
 
 WHEREAS, contemporaneously with the execution of the Amended and Restated Agent and 
Project Agreement, the Agency delivered to the Company a Sales Tax Exemption Letter, which letter 
will expire; and 
 
 WHEREAS, by letter from Brijesh Patel, dated July 2, 2020, the Company requested that the 
sales tax abatement period be extended for another six (6) months to continue the Project. 
  
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the sales tax abatement period for the Project 
be, and hereby is, extended from August 1, 2020 through and including January 31, 2021. 
 
 The question of the adoption of the foregoing resolution was duly put to a vote on roll call, 
which resulted as follows: 
 
 Ira Steingart   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Suzanne Loughlin  [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Edward T. Sykes  [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Howard Siegel   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Scott Smith   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Paul Guenther   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Joseph Perrello  [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Carol Roig   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 
 The resolution was thereupon duly adopted. 
 
60403-038 











ɸ

℄

℄
ɸ

JOB TITLE:  

DRAWN BY:  

NEW YORK STATE

ELECTRIC & GAS CORP.

DATE:  

REVISION:  

SUB/CKT:  

NOTIFICATION:  

WORK ORDER:  

COUNTY:  

TOWN:  

PAGE:  OF  

ROAD:  

NS 715 GLEN WILD RD WOODRIDGE

10300637685

801000274470

BOB K

1/30/2020

1SULLIVAN

FALLSBURG

GLEN WILD RD L 426  P 90

ROCK HILL 125, 26/25,  4.8KV 1 1



 RESOLUTION 
 

A regular meeting of the County of Sullivan Industrial Development Agency (“Agency”) 
was convened via teleconference on July 13, 2020, at 11:00 a.m. 

 
 The meeting was called to order by Chairman Ira Steingart, and, upon roll being called, the 
following members of the Agency were: 
 
     PRESENT  ABSENT 
  
 Ira Steingart   [     ]  [     ] 
 Suzanne Loughlin  [     ]   [     ] 
 Edward T. Sykes  [     ]  [     ] 
 Howard Siegel   [     ]  [     ] 
 Scott Smith   [     ]  [     ] 
 Paul Guenther                         [     ]  [     ] 
 Joseph Perrello  [     ]  [     ] 
 Carol Roig   [     ]  [     ] 
  
 The following persons were also present: 
 
 Jennifer M. Flad, Executive Director 
 Julio Garaicoechea, Project Manager 

Deborah Nola, Accounting and Financial Analyst 
 Walter F. Garigliano, Agency General Counsel 
        
 The following resolution was duly offered by _____________________________, and 
seconded by __________________________, to wit: 
 
 Resolution No. ___ - 20 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE GRANT OF AN EASEMENT TO NEW 
YORK STATE ELECTRIC & GAS CORPORATION (“NYSEG”) RELATING 
TO THE BRR BROTHERS III, LLC AND SULLIVAN COUNTY 
FABRICATION, INC. (“COMPANY”) PROJECT 
 

 WHEREAS, by Title 1 of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law of the State of New 
York ("State"), as amended, and Chapter 560 of the Laws of 1970 of the State, as amended and 
codified as Section 960 of the General Municipal Law (collectively, the “Act”), the Agency was 
created with the authority and power to own, lease and sell property as authorized by the Act; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on or about January 28, 2016, the Company presented an application 
(“Application”) to the Agency, a copy of which is on file at the office of the Agency, requesting 
that the Agency consider undertaking a project consisting of the: (i) acquisition, construction, 
reconstruction, renovation, rehabilitation, installation and equipping of six (6) buildings 



aggregating approximately 180,000± square feet intended to be used to accommodate a metal 
fabrication factory and storage of manufactured products (collectively, “Existing Buildings”) 
situate on two (2) parcels of real estate consisting of approximately 138.26± acres located along 
Glen Wild Road, Town of Fallsburg (“Town”), Woodridge, County of Sullivan (“County”), State 
and identified on the Town tax map as Section 62, Block 1, Lot 20.1 and Section 63, Block 1, Lot 
4 (“Land”); (ii) acquisition, construction and equipping of the Existing Buildings; (iii) acquisition, 
construction and installation thereon and therein of certain furniture, fixtures, machinery, 
equipment and tools (“Equipment”); (iv) construction of improvements to the Existing Buildings, 
the Land and the Equipment (collectively, the Existing Buildings, the Land and the Equipment are 
referred to as the “Facility” or the “Project”); and (v) lease of the Facility from the Agency to the 
Company; and  

 
WHEREAS, on or about April 22, 2016, the Agency and the Company closed on a 

sale/leaseback transaction at which time the Agency acquired title to the Land; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on June 12, 2017 by resolution #33-17, the Agency authorized the grant of an 
easement to NYSEG to install a pole and ground anchor to provide lighting at the Project; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Agency wishes to grant that certain Easement (“Easement”) to NYSEG 
for installation of a pole and ground anchor to provide additional lighting at the Project; and 
   
 WHEREAS, the Agency desires to authorize, empower and direct its Executive Director 
to execute and deliver the Easement. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE AGENCY AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 
 Section 1.  The Executive Director is hereby authorized, on behalf of the Agency, to 

execute and deliver the Easement and any and all related documents in form 
approved by Counsel to the Agency and with such changes, variations, 
omissions and insertions as the Chairman of the Agency shall approve, the 
execution thereof by the Executive Director of the Agency to constitute 
conclusive evidence of such approval.  

 
 Section 2.  The officers, employees and agents of the Agency are hereby authorized 

and directed for and in the name and on behalf of the Agency to do all acts 
and things required and to execute and deliver all such certificates, 
instruments, documents, and to pay all such fees, charges and expenses and 
to do all such further acts and things as may be necessary or in the opinion 
of the officer, employee or agent acting on behalf of the Agency desirable 
and proper to effect the purposes of the foregoing resolutions and to cause 
compliance by the Agency with all the terms, covenants and provisions of 
the documents for and on behalf of the Agency. 

 
  



 
Section 3. The Executive Director or Counsel to the Agency is hereby authorized and 

directed (i) to distribute copies of this resolution to the Company; and (ii) 
to do such further things or perform such acts as may be necessary or 
convenient to implement the provisions of this resolution. 

 
Section 4. This resolution shall take effect immediately. 

 
THE MEMBERS VOTED ON THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION AS FOLLOWS: 

 
 Ira Steingart   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Suzanne Loughlin  [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Edward T. Sykes  [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Howard Siegel   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Scott Smith   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Paul Guenther   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Joseph Perrello  [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Carol Roig   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 
 and therefore, the resolution was declared duly adopted. 
 
  



STATE OF NEW YORK  : 
     :ss.: 
COUNTY OF SULLIVAN     : 
 
 I, the undersigned Secretary (or Assistant) of the Agency DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT: 
 
1. I have compared the foregoing copy of a resolution of the Agency with the original thereof 

on file in the office of the Agency, and that the same is a true and correct copy of such 
resolution and of the proceedings of the Agency in connection with such matter. 

 
2. Such resolution was passed at a meeting of the Agency duly convened via teleconference 

on July 13, 2020 at 11:00 a.m. at which the following members were present: 
 
     PRESENT  ABSENT 
  
 Ira Steingart   [     ]  [     ] 
 Suzanne Loughlin  [     ]   [     ] 
 Edward T. Sykes  [     ]  [     ] 
 Howard Siegel   [     ]  [     ] 
 Scott Smith   [     ]  [     ] 
 Paul Guenther                         [     ]  [     ] 
 Joseph Perrello  [     ]  [     ] 
 Carol Roig   [     ]  [     ] 
 
3. The question of the adoption of the foregoing resolution was duly put to a vote on roll call 

which resulted as follows: 
 
 Ira Steingart   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Suzanne Loughlin  [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Edward T. Sykes  [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Howard Siegel   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Scott Smith   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Paul Guenther   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Joseph Perrello  [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Carol Roig   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 
 and therefore, the resolution was declared duly adopted. 
   
60403-037 



 I FURTHER CERTIFY that (i) all members of the Agency had due notice of said meeting, 
(ii) pursuant to Sections 103a and 104 of the Public Officers Law (Open Meetings Law), said 
meeting was open to the general public and public notice of the time and place of said meeting 
was duly given in accordance with such Sections 103a and 104, (iii) the meeting in all respects 
was duly held, and (iv) there was a quorum present throughout. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and seal on the 13th day of July, 
2020. 
 
 
       ____________________________________ 
                   Secretary 
 

























60403-020 

 



Project Description  
 
 
RGG Realty LLC/Columbia Ice and Cold Storage, proposes to purchase an existing 22,000 square foot 
facility at 33 Plaza drive SBL 130-1-17 owned by the County of Sullivan for the appraised value of $425,000. 
The facility will be used to distribute bagged ice to end users throughout the Catskills and Northern 
Hudson Valley territory. As the facility needs to work to meet the requirements for our intended use, we 
will be investing an additional $1, 017,750 in order to renovate the building, install a freezer, loading dock 
and small office. We will need approximately 10 construction people to conduct the needed upgrades and 
5 full time employees to run the facility. A change of use permit for the facility has been obtained from 
the Village from Monticello.  
 
Columbia Ice and Cold Storage has been expanding its service territory rapidly into this area. However, 
the high tax burden in the Village precludes me from making the business decision to invest here. Our 
application to the SCIDA if successful, will make that decision possible since we can invest in the building 
up front and get established so that we can be here for the long term and expand in the future.  We will 
be paying and entry level hourly rate of $15/hr. with management earning up to $70,000 per year.  



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a public hearing pursuant to Article 18-A of the New York 
State General Municipal Law will be held by the County of Sullivan Industrial Development 
Agency (“Agency”) on Monday, July 13, 2020 at 10:30 a.m., local time, in the Legislative 
Hearing Room at the Sullivan County Government Center, 100 North Street, Monticello, New 
York, in connection with the following matter: 
 
RGG Realty LLC (“RGG”) and Columbia Ice and Cold Storage Corporation (“Columbia,” 
together with RGG collectively, the “Company”) has submitted an application (“Application”), a 
copy of which is on file with the Agency, requesting the Agency’s assistance with respect to a 
certain project consisting of the: (i) acquisition, construction, reconstruction, renovation, 
rehabilitation, installation and equipping of an approximately 22,000 +/- square foot building to 
include an  ice distribution facility with associated office space and break room (“Building”) 
situate on one (1) parcel of real estate consisting of approximately four acres located at 33 Plaza 
Drive, Village of Monticello (“Village”), Town of Thompson (“Town”), County of Sullivan 
(“County”), State of New York and identified on the Town tax map as Section 130, Block 1, Lot 
17 (“Land”); (ii) construction and equipping of the Building; (iii) construction and installation 
thereon and therein of certain furniture, fixtures, machinery, equipment and tools (“Equipment”); 
(iv) construction of improvements to the Building, the Land and the Equipment (collectively, the 
Building, the Land and the Equipment are referred to as the “Facility” or the “Project”); and (v) 
lease of the Project from the Agency to the Company. 
 
The Agency will acquire title to, or a leasehold interest in, the Facility and lease the Facility back 
to the Company.  The Company will operate the Facility during the term of the Lease.  At the 
end of the lease term, the Company will purchase the Facility from the Agency for a nominal 
price, or if the Agency holds a leasehold interest, the leasehold interest will be terminated.  The 
Agency contemplates that it will provide financial assistance (“Financial Assistance”) to the 
Company in the form of sales and use tax exemption and a mortgage recording tax exemption, 
consistent with the policies of the Agency, and a partial real property tax abatement.  
 
A representative of the Agency will be at the above-stated time and place to present a copy of the 
Company’s project application and hear and accept written and oral comments from all persons 
with views in favor of, opposed or otherwise relevant to the proposed Financial Assistance. 
 
 
Dated: June 29, 2020 By: COUNTY OF SULLIVAN INDUSTRIAL      

DEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION 
 

A regular meeting of the County of Sullivan Industrial Development Agency (“Agency”) 
was convened via teleconference on July 13, 2020, at 11:00 a.m. 

 
 The meeting was called to order by Chairman Ira Steingart, and, upon roll being called, the 
following members of the Agency were: 
 
     PRESENT  ABSENT 
  
 Ira Steingart   [     ]  [     ] 
 Suzanne Loughlin  [     ]   [     ] 
 Edward T. Sykes  [     ]  [     ] 
 Howard Siegel   [     ]  [     ] 
 Scott Smith   [     ]  [     ] 
 Paul Guenther                         [     ]  [     ] 
 Joseph Perrello  [     ]  [     ] 
 Carol Roig   [     ]  [     ] 
  
 The following persons were also present: 
 
 Jennifer M. Flad, Executive Director 
 Julio Garaicoechea, Project Manager 

Deborah Nola, Accounting and Financial Analyst 
 Walter F. Garigliano, Agency General Counsel 
        
 The following resolution was duly offered by _____________________________, and 
seconded by __________________________, to wit: 
 
 Resolution No. ___ - 20 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE COUNTY OF SULLIVAN INDUSTRIAL 
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY APPOINTING RGG REALTY LLC (“RGG”) AND 
COLUMBIA ICE AND COLD STORAGE CORPORATION (“COLUMBIA,” 
TOGETHER WITH RGG COLLECTIVELY, THE “COMPANY”)AS ITS 
AGENT FOR THE PURPOSE OF CONSTRUCTING THE PROJECT 
(HEREINAFTER DEFINED); MAKING CERTAIN FINDINGS AND 
DETERMINATIONS WITH RESPECT TO THE PROJECT; AND 
AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF AN AGENT AND 
PROJECT AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE AGENCY AND THE COMPANY; 
AUTHORIZING THE AGENCY TO EXECUTE THE LEASE TO AGENCY 
(“LEASE”), LEASEBACK TO COMPANY (“LEASEBACK”), PAYMENT IN 
LIEU OF TAX AGREEMENT (“PILOT AGREEMENT”) AND RELATED 
DOCUMENTS WITH RESPECT TO THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE 
PROJECT 



 
 WHEREAS, by Title 1 of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law of the State of New 
York ("State"), as amended, and Chapter 560 of the Laws of 1970 of the State, as amended and 
codified as Section 960 of the General Municipal Law (collectively, the “Act”), the Agency was 
created with the authority and power to own, lease and sell property as authorized by the Act; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on or about June 16, 2020, the Company presented an application to the 
Agency (“Application”), a copy of which is on file at the office of the Agency, requesting that the 
Agency consider undertaking a project consisting of the: (i) acquisition, construction, 
reconstruction, renovation, rehabilitation, installation and equipping of an approximately 22,000 
+/- square foot building to include an ice distribution facility with associated office space and break 
room (“Building”) situate on one (1) parcel of real estate consisting of approximately four acres 
located at 33 Plaza Drive, Village of Monticello (“Village”), Town of Thompson (“Town”), 
County of Sullivan (“County”), State of New York and identified on the Town tax map as Section 
130, Block 1, Lot 17 (“Land”); (ii) construction and equipping of the Building; (iii) construction 
and installation thereon and therein of certain furniture, fixtures, machinery, equipment and tools 
(“Equipment”); (iv) construction of improvements to the Building, the Land and the Equipment 
(collectively, the Building, the Land and the Equipment are referred to as the “Facility” or the 
“Project”); and (v) lease of the Project from the Agency to the Company; and 
    
 WHEREAS, it is contemplated that the Agency will (i) designate the Company as its agent 
for the purpose of constructing the Project; (ii) negotiate and enter into an Agent and Project 
Agreement, the Lease, the Leaseback and the PILOT Agreement with the Company (collectively, 
the “Transaction Documents”); (iii) hold a leasehold interest in the Land and the improvements 
thereon which constitute the Project; and (iv) provide financial assistance to the Company in the 
form of (a) sales tax exemption for purchases related to the construction of the Project; (b) a real 
property tax abatement on increased value resulting from improvements to the Land through the 
PILOT Agreement; and (c) a mortgage tax exemption for financing related to the Project; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the total financial assistance being contemplated by the Agency is greater 
than $100,000; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Agency determined that the Application which involves the adaptive 
reuse of one (1) existing building is a Type II Action under SEQR and pursuant to the Agency’s 
Resolution, dated September 14, 1998 no further action is required; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Agency has given due consideration to the Application of the Company 
and to representations by the Company that the proposed financial assistance is an inducement to 
the Company to undertake the Project; and 
  
 WHEREAS, the Agency has considered the following matters as more fully set forth in its 
Uniform Tax Exemption Policies: 
 

A. Permanent private sector job creation and retention; 
B. Estimated value of the tax exemption; 



C. Whether the affected taxing jurisdictions shall be reimbursed by the Company if 
the Project does not fulfill the purposes for which the exemption was granted; 

D. Impact of Project on existing and proposed business or economic development 
projects; 

E. The amount of private sector investment generated or likely to be generated by the 
Project; 

F. Demonstrated public support for the Project; 
G. Likelihood of accomplishing the Project in a timely fashion; 
H. Environmental impact; 
I. Extent to which the Project will require additional services including, but not 

limited to educational, police, transportation, EMS and fire; 
J. Extent to which the Project will provide additional revenues; and 
K. Extent to which the Project will serve the public purposes of the Act by preserving 

permanent, private sector jobs or increasing the overall number of permanent, 
private sector jobs in the State; 

 
; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Agency desires to encourage the Company to advance the job 
opportunities, health, general prosperity and economic welfare of the people of Sullivan County, 
New York by providing the contemplated financial assistance and undertaking the Project; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Chief Executive Officer has negotiated the Transaction Documents with 
the Company; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Transaction Documents have been prepared by Agency counsel. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE AGENCY AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1. The Company has presented to the Agency, among other things, an Application in 

form acceptable to the Agency. 
 

Section 2. Based upon (i) the representations made by the Company to the Agency, the 
Agency hereby determines that: 

 
(A) The Project consists of the adaptive reuse of an existing building;  
(B) The Facility is a Type II action under SEQR 6 NYCCR 617.5(c)(2) and 

accordingly, no further action is needed; and 
(C) The Project qualifies for financial assistance under the Agency’s Uniform 

Tax Abatement Policy. 
  
 

 A copy of this resolution shall together with the attachments thereto be 
placed on file in the office of the Agency where the same shall be available for 



public inspection during business hours. 
 
Section 3. The Agency has determined that the proposed financial assistance exceeds the sum 

of $100,000.00 and therefore a public hearing on due notice was held on July 13, 
2020 at 10:30 a.m., local time, in the Legislative Hearing Room at the Sullivan 
County Government Center, 100 North Street, Monticello, New York at which 
hearing comments relating to the proposed financial assistance were solicited.  Said 
public hearing was open to the general public and public notice of the time and 
place of said public hearing was duly given in accordance with the applicable 
provisions of the General Municipal Law of the State. 

 
Section 4. Based upon representations made by the Company to the Agency, the Agency 

hereby makes, finds and determines as follows: 
 

(A) By virtue of the Act, the Agency has been vested with all powers necessary 
and convenient to carry out and effectuate the purposes and provisions of 
the Act and to exercise all powers granted to it under the Act;  

(B) It is desirable and in the public interest for the Agency to (i) acquire a 
leasehold interest in the Land and improvements constituting the Project; 
(ii) appoint the Company as its agent for purposes of constructing the 
Project, and (iii) lease the Land and improvements constituting the Project 
to the Company pursuant to the Lease subject to the Leaseback and the 
PILOT Agreement; 

(C) The Agency has the authority to take the actions contemplated therein under 
the Act; and 

(D) The action to be taken by the Agency will induce the Company to develop 
the Project, thereby increasing employment opportunities in the County and 
otherwise furthering the purposes of the Agency as set forth in the Act. 

    
Section 5. Subject to the Company executing an Agent and Project Agreement in form and 

substance approved by the Chief Executive Officer, the Agency hereby authorizes 
the Company to proceed with the construction of the Project and hereby appoints 
the Company as the true and lawful agent of the Agency to construct the Project on 
behalf of the Agency; with the authority to delegate its status as agent of the Agency 
to the Company’s agents, subagents, contractors, subcontractors, suppliers, vendors 
and other such parties as the Company may choose.  The appointment described 
above includes the following activities as they relate to the construction of the 
Project, whether or not the materials, services or supplies described below are 
incorporated into or become an integral part of the Project; (i) all purchases, leases, 
rentals and other uses of tools, machinery and equipment in connection with the 
construction of the Project; (ii) all purchases, rentals, uses or consumption of 
supplies, materials and services of every kind and description in connection with 
the construction of the Project; and (iii) all purchases, leases, rentals and uses of 
equipment, machinery, and other tangible personal property (including installation 
costs with respect thereto), installed or placed in, upon or under the Project, 



including all repairs and replacements of such property.  This agency appointment 
includes the power to make, execute, acknowledge and deliver any contracts, 
orders, receipts, writings and instructions, as the stated agents for the Agency, and 
in general to do all things which may be requisite or proper for completing the 
Project, all with the same powers and with the same validity as the Agency could 
do if acting on its own behalf.  The aforesaid appointment of the Company as agent 
of the Agency to construct and equip the Project shall expire on December 31, 
2020 if the Transaction Documents have not been executed and delivered. 

 
Section 6. Based upon the representation and warranties made by the Company in its 

application for financial assistance, the Agency hereby authorizes and approves the 
Company, as its agent, to make purchases of goods and services relating to the 
Project and that would otherwise be subject to New York State and local sales and 
use tax in an amount up to $814,200, which result in New York State and local 
sales and use tax exemption benefits ("sales and use tax exemption benefits") not 
to exceed $65,136.  The Agency agrees to consider any requests by the Company 
for increase to the amount of sales and use tax exemption benefits authorized by 
the Agency upon being provided with appropriate documentation detailing the 
additional purchases of property or services. 

 
Section 7. Pursuant to Section 875(3) of the New York General Municipal Law, the Agency 

may recover or recapture from the Company, its agents, consultants, 
subcontractors, or any other party authorized to make purchases for the benefit of 
the Project, any sales and use tax exemption benefits taken or purported to be taken 
by the Company, its agents, consultants, subcontractors, or any other party 
authorized to make purchases for the benefit of the Project, if it is determined that: 
(i) the Company, its agents, consultants, subcontractors, or any other party 
authorized to make purchases for the benefit of the Project, is not entitled to the 
sales and use tax exemption benefits; (ii) the sales and use tax exemption benefits 
are in excess of the amounts authorized to be taken by the Company, its agents, 
consultants, subcontractors, or any other party authorized to make purchases for the 
benefit of the Project; (iii) the sales and use tax exemption benefits are for property 
or services not authorized by the Agency as part of the Project; or (iv) the sales and 
use tax exemption benefits are taken in cases where the Company, its agents, 
consultants, subcontractors, or any other party authorized to make purchases for the 
benefit of the Project, fails to comply with a material term or condition to use 
property or services in the manner approved by the Agency in connection with the 
Project.  As a condition precedent of receiving sales and use tax exemption benefits, 
the Company, its agents, consultants, subcontractors, or any other party authorized 
to make purchases for the benefit of the Project, must (i) cooperate with the Agency 
in its efforts to recover or recapture any sales and use tax exemption benefits, and 
(ii) promptly pay over any such amounts to the Agency that the Agency demands. 

  
Section 8. The Transaction Documents which were negotiated by the Chief Executive Officer, 

are hereby approved as to form and substance on condition that: (i) the payments 



under the Leaseback include payments of all costs incurred by the Agency arising 
out of or related to the Project and indemnification of the Agency by the Company 
for actions taken by the Company and/or claims arising out of or related to the 
Project; and (ii) the terms of the PILOT Agreement are consistent with the 
Agency’s Uniform Tax Exemption Policy. 

 
Section 9. The Chairman, Executive Director or Chief Executive Officer of the Agency is 

hereby authorized, on behalf of the Agency, to execute and deliver the Transaction 
Documents in the form presented at this meeting all with such changes, variations, 
omissions and insertions as the Chairman, Executive Director or Chief Executive 
Officer of the Agency shall approve, the execution thereof by the Chairman, 
Executive Director or Chief Executive Officer of the Agency to constitute 
conclusive evidence of such approval. 

 
Section 10. The officers, employees and agents of the Agency are hereby authorized and 

directed  in the name and on behalf of the Agency to do all acts and things required 
and to execute and deliver all such certificates, instruments and documents, to pay 
all such fees, charges and expenses and to do all such further acts and things as may 
be necessary or, in the opinion of the officer, employee or agent acting, desirable 
and proper to effect the purposes of this resolution and to cause compliance by the 
Agency with all of the terms, covenants and provisions of the documents executed 
for and on behalf of the Agency. 

 
Section 11. It is hereby found and determined that all formal actions of the Agency concerning 

and relating to the adoption of this resolution were adopted in an open meeting of 
the Agency; and that all deliberations of the Agency and of any of its committees 
that resulted in such formal action were in meetings open to the public, in 
compliance with all legal requirements. 

 
Section 12. The Executive Director, Chief Executive Officer or Counsel to the Agency is 

hereby authorized and directed (i) to distribute copies of this resolution to the 
Company; and (ii) to do such further things or perform such acts as may be 
necessary or convenient to implement the provisions of this resolution. 

 
Section 13. This resolution shall take effect immediately. 
  



 
THE MEMBERS VOTED ON THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION AS FOLLOWS: 

 
 Ira Steingart   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Suzanne Loughlin  [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Edward T. Sykes  [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Howard Siegel   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Scott Smith   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Paul Guenther   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Joseph Perrello  [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Carol Roig   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
  
 The resolutions were thereupon duly adopted. 
  



STATE OF NEW YORK :   
    :SS 
COUNTY OF SULLIVAN : 
 
 I, the undersigned (Assistant) Secretary of the Agency DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT: 
 
1. I have compared the foregoing copy of a resolution of the Agency with the original thereof 

on file in the office of the Agency, and that the same is a true and correct copy of such 
resolution and of the proceedings of the Agency in connection with such matter. 

 
2. Such resolution was passed at a meeting of the Agency duly convened via teleconference 

on July 13, 2020 at 11:00 a.m. at which the following members were present: 
 
     PRESENT  ABSENT 
  
 Ira Steingart   [     ]  [     ] 
 Suzanne Loughlin  [     ]   [     ] 
 Edward T. Sykes  [     ]  [     ] 
 Howard Siegel   [     ]  [     ] 
 Scott Smith   [     ]  [     ] 
 Paul Guenther                         [     ]  [     ] 
 Joseph Perrello  [     ]  [     ] 
 Carol Roig   [     ]  [     ] 
 
3. The question of the adoption of the foregoing resolution was duly put to a vote on roll call 

which resulted as follows: 
 
 Ira Steingart   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Suzanne Loughlin  [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Edward T. Sykes  [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Howard Siegel   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Scott Smith   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Paul Guenther   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Joseph Perrello  [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Carol Roig   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 
 and therefore, the resolution was declared duly adopted.    
60403-036v3  



 I FURTHER CERTIFY that (i) all members of the Agency had due notice of said meeting, 
(ii) pursuant to Sections 103a and 104 of the Public Officers Law (Open Meetings Law), said 
meeting was open to the general public and public notice of the time and place of said meeting 
was duly given in accordance with such Sections 103a and 104, (iii) the meeting in all respects 
was duly held, and (iv) there was a quorum present throughout.   
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and seal on the 13th day of July, 
2020.   
 
          
       ____________________________________ 
                   Secretary  
 
 


	IDA Notice of Meeting Location Change & Agenda 07132020
	I. CALL TO ORDER
	II. ROLL CALL
	III. APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES
	IV. BILLS AND COMMUNICATIONS
	V. STAFF REPORT
	VI. NEW BUSINESS
	VII. ADJOURN


	2_06-08-2020 Meeting Minutes DRAFT2
	3_07132020 REVISED IDA Schedule of Payments
	07132020

	4_Activity & Financial Reports
	06-2020 IDA Report
	ACTIVITY REPORT – JUNE 2020

	IDA Balance Sheet 06302020 & 12312019
	IDA P&L Budget to Actual 06302020
	Sheet1


	5_Catskill Hosp. Request for Extension of STE Period 07022020
	6_60403-038 CHO Res
	7_BRR Easement Docs
	NYSEG Cover Letter
	Easement
	BRR BROTHERS MAP-SKETCH
	BRR BROTHERS SKETCH

	8_60403-037 BRR Res
	9_RGG Columbia App w Proj Description
	County of Sullivan'
	60403-020
	Project Description

	10_Public Hearing Notice RGG Columbia Ice v2
	11_60403-036v3 RGG Columbia Res

